ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 20, 2015
3:17 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Represent ati ve Shel |l ey Hughes, Vice Chair
Representative Ji m Col ver

Representative Gabrielle LeDoux
Representative Cathy Tilton

Represent ati ve Andy Josephson
Representative Sam Kito

VEMBERS ABSENT
Representative M ke Chenault (alternate)
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 81
"An Act relating to an exenption from the regulation of
construction contractors.”

- MOVED CSHB 81(L&C) OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 86
"An Act relating to investnent of the power cost equalization
endownent fund; and providing for an effective date."
- MOVED HB 86 OUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 81
SHORT TI TLE: EXEMPTI ON: LI CENSI NG OF CONTRACTORS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) TILTON

01/ 28/ 15 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 28/ 15 (H L&C

02/ 11/ 15 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

02/ 11/ 15 (H Heard & Hel d

02/ 11/ 15 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 20/ 15 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

BILL: HB 86

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- February 20, 2015



SHORT TI TLE: PCE ENDOWENT FUND | NVESTMENT
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 30/ 15 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 30/ 15 (H L&C, FIN

02/ 18/ 15 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

02/ 18/ 15 (H Heard & Hel d

02/ 18/ 15 (H M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 20/ 15 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

PATRI CK DALTON
Del ta Junction
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 81.

ERI C CLARK
Sol dot na, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 81.

M KE COONS
Pal mer, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 81.

PAMVELA GOODE
Del ta Junction
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 81.

JAVES SQUI RES
Del ta Junction
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 81.

AL NACEL, Supervisor

Mechani cal | nspection

Di vi sion of Labor Standards and Safety

Departnment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent ( DLVD)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the discussion of
HB 81

GREY M TCHELL, Director

Central Ofice

D vision of Labor Standards & Safety

Departnment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent ( DLWD)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the discussion of
HB 81.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- February 20, 2015



SARA CHAMBERS, Acting Director

Di vision of Corporations, Business, and Professional Licensing
Depart ment of Comrerce, Community, & Econom c Devel opnent ( DCCED)
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Responded to questions during the
di scussi on of HB 81.

ERROL CHAMPI ON, Chair

Legislative |Issues Cormittee

Al aska Associ ation of Realtors (AAR)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 81.

KONRAD JACKSQN, Staff

Representative Kurt O son

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions on HB 81,
on behalf of the House Labor & Comrerce Standing Commttee,
Representative Kurt O son, Chair.

JERRY BURNETT, Deputy Comnmi ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Revenue (DOR)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified and answered questions during the
di scussi on of HB 86.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:17:18 PM

CHAIR KURT OLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:17 p.m Representatives LeDoux,
Colver, Tilton, Kito, Josephson, Hughes, and O son were present
at the call to order.

HB 81- EXEMPTI ON: LI CENSI NG OF CONTRACTORS

3:17: 34 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 81, "An Act relating to an exenption from the
regul ati on of construction contractors."

3:18: 03 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- February 20, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE TILTON, speaking as prinme sponsor, enphasized
that HB 81 wll not prevent Al askans from building or selling
their own honmes or requiring themto obtain a new |license. Sone
questions have arisen in ternms of the two-year tine limt in the

current bill. She explained that HB 81 sinply seeks to
reasonably include all individuals engaged in honme construction
as a business to be subject to the existing residential
contractor licensure. She characterized this bill as a consuner

protection bill.

3:18:56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COLVER noticed a discrepancy between the sponsor
statenent and provisions in AS 08.18. He said the sponsor
statenent read, "In cases where an owner-builder finds that they

need to sell their honme for a legitimte reason, there is a
provision for the Departnent of Labor to waive any enforcenent
action." Thus, the comm ssioner of the DLWD would need to okay
the sale within tw years. However, the definitions under AS
08.18 refer to the Departnent of Commerce, Conmunity & Econom c
Devel opnent ( DCCED. He asked for further clarification on who
will be doing the enforcenent. In response to a question, he
replied the language for this provision is the same in the
original version and the proposed conmttee substitute (CS) for
HB 81, Version W

3:20: 01 PM

CHAIR OLSON stated the bill would "trunp” the sponsor statenent.
3:20: 05 PM

CHAI R OLSON reopened public testinony on HB 81.

3:20: 26 PM

PATRI CK DALTON said he found this bill to be disturbing. He
works as a specialty contractor and he likes to do the best job

he can, but these issues would be better addressed at the city
and borough level since the closer the decisions are to the

| ocal community, the better. He expressed concern that this
bill will be difficult to enforce in rural Al aska. For exanple,
the sponsor statenment reads, "In cases where an owner-buil der

needs to sell [his/her] honme for a legitimte reason, there is a
provision for the Departnent of Labor to waive any enforcenent
action.” He pointed out that the Declaration of |ndependence

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- February 20, 2015



originally read, "Life, liberty, and property,” which was |ater
changed to "life, liberty, and the pursuit of happiness.” Thus
property is very inportant to Anericans and sone in the
unor gani zed borough really value property and freedom he said.
He expressed his concern that this bill tells people they can't
sell their property wthout being illegal, which he said is
cl ose to stealing.

MR. DALTON said although is just a citizen, he has a conscience
and it is his noral responsibility to point out to the
| egislature when bills are drafted that infringe on people's
rights and freedons. Many people live in the unorganized
bor ough because they Ilike freedom He urged nenbers to keep
this type of draconian neasure out of the boroughs so people can
go and be free to build the way they Iike. He thanked nenbers
for the opportunity to provide his input.

3:24:18 PM

ERIC CLARK stated that he and his wife, along with ten other
homeowners, found thenselves in a situation on the Kenai
Peni nsul a. He described his experience, in which he purchased a
home from an unlicensed contractor, who built two to three hones
per year with substantial construction defects, including a |ack
of wvapor barrier, wundersize wring, absence of venting, and

ot her structural defects. These hones nust be stripped to the
studs to make the repairs and replace the entire plunbing, which
will cost $100,000 per honme to correct. These honmes never
shoul d have passed inspection, but even the hone inspector did
not find defects. He said he is currently pursuing the matter
by filing a civil lawsuit. However, in an effort to prevent
ot her people from experiencing simlar issues, he also filed
licensing conplaints, but only the builder was fined. He
encouraged nenbers to pass HB 81 since the Departnent of Law has
not been able to prosecute unlicensed contractors. He wurged

menbers to help prevent other people from experiencing
situations such as his by passing HB 81.

3:29:08 PM

MKE COONS stated that he has discussed this bill wth
Representative Tilton and Col ver. He related his understandi ng
that the purpose of the bill is to address issues that the

previ ous speaker encountered. However, in terns of real estate,
selling nore than one hone per year requires a real estate
i cense. Thus, it seens that builders would be under the sane
provi si ons. For exanple, builders cannot purchase ten-acre

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 5- February 20, 2015



parcels and build nultiple hones for sale and refer to

t hensel ves as owner/builders wthout being in business. He
suggested corrective language on [page 2] line 21-25, as
follows," ... construction is advertised for sale or sold during
the period of construction unless the owner can produce to the
departnent's satisfaction a full [list of the contractor's
subcontractors used for the construction with full docunmentation
of their licenses, bonding and insurance that then would then
protect the future honeowner and integrity of the construction
i ndustry. " He suggested that Representative Colver has been

wor king on an anendnent that works to address his concern, but
he did not think Representative Colver's proposed anmendnent goes
far enough.

3:32:11 PM

PAMELA GOODE asked whether the bill is constitutional, which she
t hought is questionable. She further asked whether this bill
i ncreases or dimnishes anyone's individual liberty, which she
thinks [the bill] it does. Finally, she asked whether [the

bill] would increase the size or power of governnment and she
offered her belief that it does. She said that prefers to err
in favor of liberty and freedom She suggested that bills such
as this one are introduced because soneone has been wonged, and
the person seeks governnental renedies so others won't also be
wr onged. However, people have the Internet and easy access to
newspapers that could forewarn consumers about [unlicensed
contractors]. Furthernore, if people can't sell their products,
they will go out of business since consunmers seek to purchase
the best product for the best price. She cautioned that when
government is involved it drives costs up through 1|icensing,
rules, and regulations. She referred to [page 2, lines 21-25 of
HB 81], which read, " ... the exenption in this paragraph does
not apply if the structure under construction is advertised for
sale or sold during the period of construction or for two years
after the period of construction ends, unless the owner can

denonstrate to the departnent's satisfaction ...." She said she
lives in an unfinished hone and she knows others who do, as
wel | . She expressed concern that based on this | anguage owners
won't be able to sell their homes and in particular, the

| anguage "departnent's satisfaction" is a subjective term She
objected to owners needing to seek approval from the departnent
which dimnishes their individual liberty and also fails her
[itnus test. She appreciated the opportunity to testify.

3:35:01 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- February 20, 2015



JAMES SQUI RES described hinself as an "Alaska Constitution

Article I, Section 2 Al askan." He said he is not a contractor
but is a certified public accountant by profession. He said he
opposes HB 81. He lives renote and off the grid in the

unor gani zed borough and people who live in the urban parts of
the state may not realize the unintended consequences of this

bill. He quoted Mark Twain as saying, "No man's life, |iberty,
or property are safe while the legislature is in session." He
objected to the language in the bill that states "two years
after the period of construction ends". He suggested that over

one-half of the state is in the unorganized borough and many
peopl e pay cash for their land, build as they can afford to, and

live safely and confortably in wunfinished structures. Many
peopl e have mnultiple properties and structures, which are often
times all unfinished for a variety of reasons. He expressed

concern that they could be adversely affected by this bill.

MR. SQU RES noted that he did not hear any discussion of an
instance in which an owner-builder puts up his own capital and
doesn't recover it unless the entrepreneur sells it for nore
than he has invested. This person bears the full risk of the
mar ket as conpared to the contractor who does not put up
capital. He said the dictionary definition of a contractor is
one of the parties to a contract, which wouldn't apply to an
owner/ bui | der. He suggested that there is a huge difference
bet ween the sales contract and the building contract. He quoted
Adolf Hitler, who said, “The best way to take control over a
people and control them utterly is to take a little of their
freedomat a tinme, to erode rights by a thousand tiny and al nost
i nperceptible reductions. In this way, the people will not see
those rights and freedons being renmoved until past the point at
whi ch these changes cannot be reversed.” He said he was also
opposed to the bill when it was introduced |ast year. He
suggested that legislators and |obbyists are paid, but he
surm sed those testifying on this bill are not paid in any form
He further suggested that testifiers mnust be continually
vigilant. He stated that even with a zero fiscal note, it costs
the state significant time and noney for this bill to be
repeatedly dragged through the |egislative process, particularly
during a time of fiscal crisis. He offered that if this issue
creates problems in sone urban areas of the state, that it
should be handled locally by borough or nunicipal ordinances.

He suggested that the bill nmay have unintended consequences. He
requested that nenbers take a roll <call vote when the tine
cones.

3:40: 01 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- February 20, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked how the changes on page 2, lines
21-25 of HB 81 will inprove the chance of enforcenent since a
[imtation of two years exists for an owner/buil der.

AL NAGEL, Supervisor, Mechanical Inspection, D vision of Labor
Standards and Safety, Depar t ment of Labor & Workforce
Devel opnent (DLWD), answered that the concerns stem from within
the industry. He said that enforcenment will remain consistent
with current statute since the prohibition for an owner/buil der
to start and conplete a structure is currently two years. He
suggested the nore egregious violators hold off for two years
before they start building another in a series of hones. He
characterized this as a neans to "level the playing field" for
contractors since unlicensed contractors conduct busi ness
wi thout carrying the overhead the |licensed contractors carry.

3:42: 31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether this would increase the
af orenenti oned requirenment to four years.

MR. NAGEL answer ed no.

3:43: 17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES said the comrmittee has heard testinony
expr essi ng concern about i ndi vi dual l'iberties for
owner/ bui | ders. She interpreted the bill as allow ng typical

Al askans to continue to have the freedomto do so. She related
her understanding that an issue would only arise when |icensed
contractors notice soneone is not followng the rules and file a

conplaint that would be investigated by the departnent. She
said she is very supportive of individual Iiberties; however,
there is a msunderstanding of how this bill mght inpact an

Al askan buil di ng hi s/ her hone. She suggested that renoving al
the regulations and requirements would also create a |evel

playing field; however, so long as contractor |licensure 1is
required in Alaska, everyone engaging in contracting needs to
follow the rules. She asked for comments on how this bill would

affect the typical Al askan buil ding his/her own hone.
3:45:15 PM
GREY M TCHELL, Director, Central Ofice, Dwvision of Labor

Standards & Safety, Departnment of Labor & W rkforce Devel opnent
(DLVD) , stated t he pr oposed change created addi ti onal

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- February 20, 2015



restrictions for those attenpting to evade the licensing

requi renents for contractors. He said it would not affect
Al askans building their own hones or building and selling their
hones. Instead, this bill would assist the departnment in

identifying and prosecuting unlicensed contractors who are
buil ding hones and offering them up for sale on a recurring
basi s. He acknowl edged that the bill can help stop this
practice to the degree that it is wunfairly conpeting wth
contractors who conpete in the business.

3:46: 27 PM

REPRESENTATIVE HUGHES related her understanding there was
nothing onerous in the bill nor any additional admnistrative
steps an owner-builder would need to conply with, for exanple

as one testifier nmentioned in the event spouse dies and the
famly needs to sell their hone. She asked for further
clarification on whether an owner-builder will have any problem
or need to contact the departnent or answer to anyone or if the
owner/ buil der woul d just nove forward and sell his/her hone.

MR. M TCHELL agreed that was correct, although the wordi ng nmakes
it sound like a person would need to obtain the departnent's
approval ; however, he envisioned the practical application of
this provision is that the departnent would only get involved in
the event a conplaint was filed that raised the issue of
unlicensed contracting. He said the departnent does not have
the resources to check into routine hone sales.

3:47:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked whet her an owner/buil der who did not
check in with the departnment wll be in violation of the
st at ut e.

MR M TCHELL answer ed no.
3:48: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX related a scenario in which a person sold
their hone and the buyer |ater encounters a problem  She asked
how the buyer would be protected if the departnment is not
i nvol ved.

MR. M TCHELL answered that the |anguage is not designed to catch

every case, but is designed to provide one nore tool to nake it
nore difficult for sonmeone to operate as an unlicensed

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- February 20, 2015



contractor building and selling hones. He reiterated that this
| anguage is not intended to apply to owner/builders who build
and sell their own honmes. The departnment would only investigate
if a conplaint triggered one.

3:49: 32 PM

CHAIR OLSON asked whether that would be considered an "as is"
sal e.

MR. M TCHELL answered that he was not sure.
CHAIR OLSON surmsed it would fall under an "as is" sale.
3:49: 48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked whether M. Cdark's situation wll
be protected or if the sanme thing could happen.

MR. M TCHELL said the sanme thing could happen. He stated that
the provision in HB 81 will provide the departnment with one nore
tool to identify unlicensed contractor activity. It would allow
the departnment the opportunity to investigate whether an
unlicensed contractor built and sold three homes in a few years,
whi ch would be an enforcenent issue. However, an issue would
not arise for an owner/builder who built his/her house and was
trying to sell it.

3:50:51 PM

CHAIR OLSON said he was aware of M. dCdark's situation, which
i nvol ved ten hones.

3:51:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TILTON stated that she obtained a |egal opinion
as to whether honme sales by an owner who is not a licensed
contractor violates any constitutional provisions. She asked
perm ssion to pass it out to nenbers.

3:51: 32 PM

The committee took an at-ease from3:51 p.m to 3:45 p. m

3:54: 22 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 10- February 20, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE COLVER conmented that the Departnent of Labor &
Wor kf orce Devel opnent (DLWD) enforces the statute with respect
to hone sales; however, the statute is AS 08 which applies to
the Departnment of Commerce, Comunity & Econonic Devel opnent
(DCCED) and not to Departnent of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent.
He asked for further clarification on who provides enforcenent.

SARA CHAMBERS, Acting Director, Dwvision of Corporations,
Busi ness, and Professional Licensing, Departnent of Conmmerce,
Community, & Econom c Devel opnent (DCCED), answered that the
Department of Labor & W rkforce Developnent (DLWD) has a
rei nbursabl e services agreement (RSA), or contract, to provide
enforcenment services for construction contractors, mechanical

and electrical admnistrators. She stated that the DCCED uses
the DLWD as an efficiency neasure since the DLW s inspectors
are already in the field conducting inspections. This effort

has been happeni ng successfully for several years.
3:55:50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COLVER asked which departnent would meke the
determnation that the sale of a honme would circunvent
requi renents of this chapter as stated on page 2, lines 21-25 of
HB 81.

M5. CHAMBERS answered that the responsibility resides wthin
Department of Comerce, Conmunity & Economi ¢ Devel opnent ( DCCED)
in partnership with Departnment of Labor & Wrkforce Devel opnent
(DLWD). She said that the DLWD would be the nost |ikely agency
to detect illegal activity and issue a cease and desist order.
The final arbitration and l|licensing action or fine collection
and due process rights to appeal the cease and desist order are
all elements that would be handl ed within the DCCED, she said.

3:57: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COLVER asked for clarification on the costs to
enforce the regulations in this section. He recalled earlier
testinmony that indicated the departnent would need to pronul gate
regul ations outlining under what conditions an owner could sell
his/her hone wthin the two-year period. He asked for an
estimated cost to admnister, prepare regulations, and oversee
it.

M5. CHAMBERS said the division's average cost to promulgate

regul ati ons was estimated at $2,500, which includes the cost of
| egal services and publication. She did not anticipate any

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -11- February 20, 2015



neasureable increase in enforcenent costs since these are the
types of things the division is structured to do. She said she
and M. Mtchell are "on the sane page" in terns of how this
statute would be applied. The department would not seek advance
perm ssion of owner/builders, but in the event a conplaint is
filed the departnment would investigate it to determ ne whether
t he owner/builder qualifies for the exenption.

3:58: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COLVER asked for an estimate of the tine
investigations will take.

M5. CHAMBERS answered that nmuch of the investigative tine

depends on the conplainants' wllingness to work wth the
agency. She said she couldn't really predict; however, she
didn't envision any significant increase in enforcenent
activity.

3:58: 52 PM

REPRESENTATIVE COLVER related his understanding that the
existing statute doesn't prohibit sale of an owner constructed
home, but that an owner/builder is restricted to build only one
newl y constructed honme within two years. He further understood
there woul d not be any prohibition on owner/buil der hone sal es.

M5. CHAMBERS answered that is correct.
3:59:45 PM

ERROL CHAMPIQON, Chair; Legislative Issues Conmmttee, Al aska
Associ ation of Realtors (AAR), stated that the AAR is in support
of HB 81. He related his wunderstanding that an assistant
attorney general has said the current statute is not clear
enough to have the Departnent of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent
(DLWD) or the Departnment of Commerce, Comunity & Econonic
Devel opnent ( DCCED) prosecut e vi ol ators of unl i censed
construction contracting. This bill would clarify that the
owner/ bui |l der cannot have a home for sale, especially if it is
listed on a nultiple listing service unless properly licensed to

do so. In fact, realtors nust verify that aspect at the tine
they take a listing, he said. Contractors nust have a
construction contractor's i cense W th a resi denti al

endorsenment, as well as submt to continuing education simlar
to the ongoing education realtors submt to as a condition of
I icense renewal . Under the bill, the Departnent of Labor &

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -12- February 20, 2015



Wor kforce Devel opment (DLWD) can force the owner/builder to
obtain the appropriate license or stop building. These changes
are not intended to make it nore difficult in rural areas, but
when honmes are "flipped" every two years the intent is clear.
He concluded by saying that the AAR supports the adoption of HB
81.

4:01:19 PM

CHAIR OLSON, after first determning no one wished to testify,
cl osed public testinony on HB 81.

4:01: 39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES noved to adopt the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HB 81, Version W |abeled 29-LS0346\W
Nauman/ St r asbaugh, 2/16/15 as the wor ki ng docunent .

CHAI R OLSON obj ected for the purpose of discussion.

4:02: 01 PM

KONRAD JACKSON, Staff, Representative Kurt O son, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, explained that page 2, lines 10 of Version W wl|
add | anguage to read, "an existing structure on" and on page 2,
line 12, will add, "existing." This |anguage was added at the

recormendation of M. Mtchell, DLWD, he said.
4: 02: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COLVER referred to M. dark's case. He pointed
out that the Al aska State Troopers issued a case nunber 12-7320
dated February 8, 2012.

CHAIR OLSON asked whether this is pertinent to the conmttee
substitute, Version W

REPRESENTATI VE COLVER answered yes; since the aforenentioned
case is fraud. He stated that the building inspection was
signed off by a home inspector. The police report identified
fraud commtted by the hone inspector, which is nuch bigger than
a licensing issue since the hone inspector msrepresented the
home that was for sale. He wanted to ensure that the record is
clear that this matter has been investigated as fraud and
recommended for prosecution by the investigating trooper.

4:04:16 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 13- February 20, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE COLVER commented on another very sad incident in
which a famly died of asphyxiation in a Wsilla hone. He
suggested that the testifier alluded to this as an instance of
an owner-built home that resulted in death

CHAIR OLSON asked whether this is pertinent to the proposed
commttee substitute, Version W which is before the commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE COLVER answered that it is pertinent since the
proposed commttee substitute takes action to regulate an
activity, but it needs to be very clear that people didn't die
because it was an owner-built hone, but because the hone was
nodi fied by the honeowner to vent the famly's utility roomto
the master bedroomto pull excess heat, which resulted in carbon
nonoxi de poisoning. VWhile it is very sad, it is not relevant to
whet her it was an owner-built or |icensed contractor built hone,
but it was a nodification to the heating system that caused that
tragedy, he said.

4:06:15 PM

CHAIR OLSQN, in response to a question, asked nenbers to limt
corments to the proposed conmmttee substitute (CS) for HB 81,
Version W

CHAIR COLSON renobved his objection. There being no further
obj ection, Version Wwas adopt ed.

4:06: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TILTON noved to adopt Anmendnment 1, |abeled 29-
LS0346\ W 1, Strasbaugh, 2/18/15, which read as foll ows:

Page 1, following |line 2:
Insert a new bill section to read:

"* Section 1. The uncodified law of the State of
Al aska i s anended by adding a new section to read:

LEG SLATIVE |INTENT. It 1is the intent of the
| egi sl ature t hat t he exenptions listed in
AS 08.18.161, as anended by sec. 2 of this Act, be
construed broadly in order to allow individuals the
freedom and ability to construct and sell their own
homes based on their own discretion.”

Page 1, line 3:
Del ete "Section 1"

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -14- February 20, 2015



| nsert "Sec. 2"
Renunber the followi ng bill section accordingly.

Page 3, line 2:
Del ete "sec. 1"
| nsert "sec. 2"

REPRESENTATI VE COLVER obj ect ed.
4:07: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  TILTON said that Anmendnent 1 would add
| egislative intent |anguage to nmake it clear that this bill is
intended to be interpreted in a way to not infringe on the
freedom of Al askans to construct and sell their own hones acting
as contractors in a | awful manner.

4:07:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COLVER said that he can't support the intent
| anguage since it sounds nice but intent |anguage wll only have
neaning if the legislative history is reviewed for |egislative
i ntent. He said that this language will not have any place in
the statutory evaluation in how paragraph [11] is applied.
Further, it contradicts the clear language that linmts the sale

of the hone with the statenment that it doesn't have any effect
on property rights; however, he thinks it does have an effect.
The holding by the Al aska Suprene Court is that intent |anguage
is nerely an intent statenent and not | aw.

[ Representative Colver's objection was treated as nai ntai ned. ]

4:08: 34 PM

A roll call vote was taken. Representati ves Hughes, LeDoux,
Tilton, Kito, Josephson, and O son voted in favor of Amendnent
1. Representative Colver voted against it. Ther ef or e,

Amendnent 1 was adopted by a vote of 6-1.
4:09: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COLVER nmade notion to adopt Anendnent 2, |abeled
29-LS0346\ A. 4, Strasbaugh, 2/18/15, which read as foll ows:

Page 1, following line 2:
Insert a new bill section to read:

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 15- February 20, 2015



"* Section 1. AS 08.18.051 is anmended by addi ng new
subsections to read:

(d) A residential contractor or the agent of a
residential contractor shall promnently display the
license nunber of the residential contractor on all
advertising by the contractor for the initial sale of
a residential structure constructed by the contractor.

(e) An owner who acts as the owner's own
contractor consistent wth the exenption provided
under AS 08.18.161(11) shall, for two vyears after

construction on a structure begins, state on al
advertising for the initial sale of the structure that
the owner of the structure acted as the owner's own
contractor."

Page 1, line 3:
Del ete "Section 1"
| nsert "Sec. 2"

Renunber the followi ng bill section accordingly.

Page 2, line 21, follow ng "years":
Insert "and shall conply with AS 08.18.051(e)"

Page 2, lines 21 - 25:

Del ete "the exenption in this paragraph does not
apply if the structure under construction is
advertised for sale or sold during the period of
construction or for two years after the period of
construction ends, unless the ower can denonstrate to
the departnent's satisfaction that the sale would not
result in circunvention of the requirenments under this

chapter;"

Page 3, line 2:
Delete "sec. 1"
| nsert "sec. 2"

CHAI R OLSON obj ected for the purpose of discussion.

REPRESENTATI VE COLVER expl ai ned Anendnment 2. He stated that the
bill helps enforce contracting law to achieve better built
hones. He said that he thinks we can get better enforcenent by
requiring disclosure. Amendnent 2 would require contractors to
display their I|icense nunber on any advertising of a new hone
and require owner/builders offering a honme for sale within two
years to display and disclose that it was built by an owner.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 16- February 20, 2015



This would keep the governnent out of it and the Departnent of
Commerce, Conmmunity & Economc Developnment wll not rmnake
deci sions on who can opt out of the two-year sale provision, or
the additional staff tine by the agency or the Departnent of Law

or Departnment of Labor & Wrkforce Devel opnent. Fi nal |y,
Al askans won't have to ask permssion to sell their lawfully
built hones. He offered his belief that disclosure and
advertising can acconplish the sane mission - to avoid having
unlicensed builders building hones - since everyone wll be
aware of the signs. He clarified that Amendnent 2 will delete

the provision restricting the owner/builders from selling their
homes in two years and avoi ds having the governnent infringe on
i ndi vidual property rights or place unreasonable burdens on
property owners.

4:11:40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KITO referred to subsection (d) of Anendnent 2,
which identifies a residential contractor or the agent of a
residential contractor. He asked whether he could explain if
the agent of the residential contractor would be a general
contractor.

REPRESENTATI VE COLVER answered that agent would refer to a real
estate agent.

4:12:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TILTON suggested that subsection [d] is already
addressed under AS 08.18 051, related to identification
requi renents for contractors.

MR. NAGEL answered that the existing statute in AS 08.18.051
requi res substantially the sane thing that is in subsection (d)
of Amendnent 2. He acknow edged that it my be clearer in
subsection (d) but the requirenment is still there in subsection
(b) and (c) of the current statute.

4:14: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked how the bill mght inpact an
ordi nary Al askans wanting to build their own honmes, noting they
woul dn't need to do anything different wunder current |[|aw
However, she said [Anendnent 2] would add a requirenent for
owner/ bui | ders. She said that Amendnent 2 would actually add
onerous requirenments on Al askans who desire to build their hones

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -17- February 20, 2015



and it does not pronote individual |iberties. Therefore, she
wi |l not be supporting Anendnent 2, she said.

MR. M TCHELL answered that [Amendnment 2] does seem to create
anot her requirenment for owner/builders who build their own hones
to put sone statenent to that effect in their adverti sing.

4:15:40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COLVER poi nted out the reason the bill is before
the commttee is to enforce unlicensed contractors. Furt her
the concern from the industry is that unlicensed builders are
selling hones. He offered his belief that the reason nost

owners build honmes is to live in their hones. He said if people
do not get a contractor's license, they need to state that they

are owner/builders acting as their own contractors. Doi ng so
makes it clear to the public that they are buying honmes that
were built by owner/builders and not contractors. Further, the

advertising is promnently displayed, which is the clarification
bet ween the | anguage in [Arendnent 2] and the existing statutory
| anguage. He characterized it as the "golden seal” since it
identifies any honmes built by |Iicensed contractors. He
acknow edged that hone inspections are part of the due diligence
performed by the buyers. He offered his belief that [Amendnent
2] creates sonething that is straightforward and sinple rather
than requiring owner/builders to ask the governnent perm ssion

to sell their hones within two years. This sinmply requires
di sclosure and the governnent wll not be involved in the
process, he said; instead, the onus is on public and it is

simlar to how many things are handl ed.
4:17:48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked for the reason to set up two cl asses
of people, with one group that nust be |icensed and bonded and
anot her group of people who are [building honmes] as a business
who don't need to be licensed and bonded. She said she has a
problemw th this anmendnment but she likes the bill.

4:18:40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON said he is not likely to vote for
Amendrent 2, but he did not think the burden in subsection (e)

iS so egregious. After all, the law already restricts owners to
build one hone every two years. Thus, current law creates a
break on pure liberty interest and restricts owners. He

understands the point the sponsor of Amendnent 2 attenpts to

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 18- February 20, 2015



make, which is to create notice and cure the problem in a
different way. He expressed concern with Amendnment 2 since a
person could be working on a honme for two years. Certainly the
timeframe could spill in to second year and the notice will be
eaten up by the time of construction, since [subsection (e)
states it will begin after construction. He said the tine could
end at tine of sale so he was unsure that there would be a
"whole | ot of" notice.

REPRESENTATI VE COLVER nui nt ai ned hi s objection.

4:20: 06 PM

A roll call vote was taken. Representative Colver voted in
favor of Anendnent 2. Represent ati ves Hughes, LeDoux, Tilton,
Kito, Josephson, and Oson voted against it. Ther ef or e,

Amrendnent 2 failed by a vote of 1-6.
4:20:52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COLVER noved to adopt Anmendnment 3, |abeled 29-
LS0346\ A. 5, Strasbaugh, 2/18/15, which read, as foll ows:

Page 2, line 22, followng "is":
Insert "in a hone rule, first class, or second
cl ass borough or unified nunicipality"”

CHAI R OLSON obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE COLVER explained that Amendnent 3  basically
exenpts unorgani zed comunities. He said it would apply in a
home rule, first class, or second class borough or wunified
muni ci pality.

4:21:30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON poi nted out that as a general rule that
sonme code enforcenment wll occur in larger comunities. He
assunmed that the problem the sponsor is trying to renedy exists
in rural Al aska, as well.

CHAIR OLSON responded that the issues in his district are from
areas outside the city limts and not in Kenai or Sol dotna.

4:22:40 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -19- February 20, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE COLVER offered his belief that Amendnment 3 will
hel p reduce inspections by the Department of Labor & Wrkforce
Devel opnent (DLWD) of owner/builder honmes in rural Al aska. He
said it does not apply in the Kenai Peninsula Borough, but it
will apply in conmmunities such as Tok and denallen, as well as
areas along the river systens. He suggested that funding
doesn't exist to enforce the current |aw

4:23:32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KITO added that protection is needed in the
unorgani zed areas to protect themfrom actions.

CHAI R OLSON mai nt ai ned hi s objection.

4:23:52 PM

A roll call vote was taken. Representative Colver voted in
favor of Anendnent 3. Represent ati ves Hughes, LeDoux, Tilton
Kito, Josephson, and dson voted against it. Ther ef or e,

Amendnent 3 failed by a vote of 1-6.

4:24: 39 PM

CHAI R OLSON stated Version Wis before the commttee.
4:24:52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON said he has spent considerable tine on
this bill. He acknow edged Representative Colver's point that
too much governnent isn't a good thing and if people are foolish
and nake bad purchasing decisions that it is on them They need
to be grownups, be vigilant, and |ook after thenselves or
basically, caveat enptor - "let the buyer beware". He suggested
all of these things apply to this bill. In terns of liberty, if
it took soneone two years to build, the person could be tied to
the hone for four years, which sonmewhat concerns him but he is
not surprised by the Legislative Legal opinion since he has read

some of the cases cited. However, there are over 300 mllion
people in the U S. and our country is rmuch nore conplicated than
when it was founded. He said rules are designed to keep us
safer. He said the idea of "neeting the departnent's
satisfaction® as a deciding factor seenms arbitrary and
capricious since he has no idea what that phrase actually neans.
He also was not sure how these key lines will help nmuch since
enforcenment costs noney. He pointed out dry cabins can be built
outside of Anchorage. Utimately, what M. Geen wote on

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 20- February 20, 2015



February 18, 2015 in a letter in support of HB 81 was
per suasi ve, which read, "If you believe anybody should be able
to be a builder, then we need to change and/or do away with the
requi renents we now place on our |icensed general contractors.”
He said that was the deciding factor for him Thus, he
recommends voting to nove HB 81 out of commttee with a positive
recomrendat i on.

4:28:02 PM

CHAI R OLSON agreed with the comments of the previous speaker.

4:28:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COLVER said that the issue raised in this bill
comes from his comunity. However, passing this bill won't
change the conpetitive | andscape. He suspected that if a few
builders are not getting licensed, they wll Ilikely get a
license, but the "playing field" will not change since there are
conpetitive business nobdels used to gain an advantage. He
predicted that what will happen is Al askans will |ose freedom

He said Alaskans don't want to go to the governnent to ask
perm ssion to sell their property just as they don't go to the
U.S. Securities and Exchange Conmm ssion to ask permssion to
sell their stocks. Instead, individuals are free to buy and
sell as they see fit.

REPRESENTATI VE COLVER said the law allows Alaskans to build

their own homes every two years. He suggested that a |ack of
adequate enforcenent exists, which has led to this neasure.
However, he characterized HB 81 as an overreach that wll cost
government noney. Further, he questioned whether it is the

governnent's decision since it's not clearly defined in the bil
when people can sell their hones. He suggested that is yet to

be determ ned, which really needs to be worked out. He said a
ot of Alaskans feel strongly about their rights and he joins
t hem He suggested it is possible to have a conpetitive
| andscape and a well-licensed, well-regulated building industry,
but many communities, such as the greater WMat-Su Borough do not
want building permts. Thus, the approach taken wll regulate

the industry through another angle, which is to have the state
intervene. He offered his belief that sone of these issues need
to be solved locally. He estimated 60-70 percent of the hones
currently being built are owner/builder honmes, in which Al askans
buy land, build a honme, add on to it, and if they sell, the
prospective buyers will obtain their own inspectors.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -21- February 20, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE COLVER pointed out that an instance of sinple
fraud and falsified docunments led to this bill. He concl uded
that this bill is overkill. He cautioned nenbers about limting
liberty and asked nenbers to tread lightly on Al askans' freedom

4. 31:48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX answered that she supports having a |evel
playing field. She wunderstood the argunent for individual
liberty, which is as inportant to her as it is to anyone else in
this body. However, she suggested that the commttee either
passes this bill or should sinply elinmnate |icensing
requi renents for everyone in the industry. She said that for
nmost of this century, the idea of caveat enptor - "let the buyer
beware" - did apply to construction contracts; however, the
| egi sl ature previously made policy decisions to require builders
and contractors to be Ilicensed and bonded. Therefore, let's

make it for everyone, she said.

4:32:45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES said she would not be supportive of the
bill if it limted liberty of individual Al askans. However,
this bill does not require individual Alaskans who are
owner/builders to seek perm ssion fromthe governnent. Further
it does not place any burden on Al askans who have built their
own hones. She agreed with Representative LeDoux that the

| egi sl ature has previously made policy decisions. She referred
to a Legislative Legal Services nenp that opines that HB 81 does
not constitute any constitutional issues wth respect to an
unwarranted restraint of trade for an owner/builder who is not a
| icensed construction contractor.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES acknow edged previous testinony related to
a honme inspector who was being reconmended for prosecution;
however, there were underlying problens with the home that was
built. In fact, policy decisions have been made in order for
Al askans to have safe homes. Although she would love it if the
mar ket could take care of the problens, and people can get the
best product for the best price, but buyers can't see everything
in the walls, nor are all people experts. Certainly people can
hire inspectors, but things can be m ssed. However, buyers need
assurances that their homes have been built by someone who knows
what they are doing and who is followng the rules. She asked
to place on the record that this bill does not require
i ndi vi dual Al askans to seek perm ssion from the governnent and

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -22- February 20, 2015



Al askans will continue to have the liberty to build and sell
their own hones as owner/buil ders.

4:35:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TILTON stated that she appreciated the questions
that have been raised. She stated it is not her desire to
prevent people from building or selling their own hones. She
said that HB 81 is intended to close a |oophole [for unlicensed
contracting] and not renove any personal |iberties.

4:36: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES noved to report the proposed commttee
substitute (CS) for HB 81, | abel ed 29- LS0346\ W
Nauman/ St rasbaugh, 2/16/15 [Version W, out of conmttee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes.

REPRESENTATI VE COLVER obj ect ed.
4:36:47 PM

A roll call vote was taken. Representati ves Hughes, LeDoux,
Tilton, Kito, Josephson, and O son voted in favor of nobving to
report the proposed commttee substitute (CS) for HB 81, Version
W out of comittee. Representative Colver voted against it.
Therefore, the CSHB 81(L&C) was reported out of the House Labor
and Comrerce Standing Commttee by a vote of 6-1.

4:37:14 PM
The commttee took an at-ease from4:37 p.m to 4:39 p.m

HB 86- PCE ENDOWENT FUND | NVESTMENT

4:39: 35 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 86, "An Act relating to investnent of the power
cost equalization endowrent fund; and providing for an effective
date."

4:39: 47 PM
JERRY BURNETT, Deputy Comm ssioner, Ofice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Revenue (DOR), stated that HB 86 would renpve
"seven percent” from the statute and replaces it with a phrase

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 23- February 20, 2015



that reads, "to neet the objectives of the power cost
equalization and rural electric capitalization fund (AS
42.45.100) . " He clarified that none of the other funds have a
nunerical objective in statute, but risk is involved in trying
to reach a specific nunerical objective over tine.

4:40:59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether anything unfortunate
happened to the account or the |anguage is just being adjusted.

MR. BURNETT stated that he has been with the departnent for 10
years. He recalled that the department suffered some fairly
| arge losses in 2008 in the fund, but relatively speaking there
haven't been any bad decisions during that tine; however, since
he has been with the departnent, all five comm ssioners have
supported renovi ng the nunber from statute.

4:42: 01 PM

REPRESENTATIVE KITO said it seenmed as though the investnent
goal s may have changed, since enough incone is being generated
by the fund to pay for the current Power Cost Equalization
Program He said it appeared as though the departnent wants to
manage it and not |lose the ability to do so.

MR. BURNETT said it is currently probably less inportant to be
an aggressive investor than it mght have been a few years ago.
The balance in the fund is over $950 mllion and a 7 percent
payout is nore than what is required to nanage the power cost
equal i zation (PCE) expenditures. He suggested it is well within
the objectives of the fund to "ratchet down risk"” a little bit.

4:43: 06 PM

CHAIR OLSON reported that the conmittee has recei ved
docunentation today that since 2000 the PCE fund has averaged
6. 05 percent return on investnent.

MR. BURNETT said it is a geonetric annualized return and not an
arithnmetic average of the returns year to year, but is a
geonetric average, which includes the |osses.

4:43: 32 PM

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 24- February 20, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked whether this is now just being
brought forward due to the narket. She asked for further
clarification on the types of investnents.

4:44:01 PM

MR. BURNETT said Gary Bader previously testified on the standard
deviation between different types of investnents and how having
a riskier investment may look like it will reap a higher return

which will happen arithnmetically over tinme, but the geonetric
return can be reduced due to the |losses. He stated that capita

mar ket assunptions change each year so the departnent considers
different levels of risk. This year the goal mght be a 6
percent return and next year it mght be a 9 percent return,
dependi ng on the market. He referred to the different types of
i nvestments such as stocks relative to bonds, or fixed
investnment - which currently has little return. He reported
that the stock narket has been going up for the past six years,
but it has never gone up for seven years. It doesn't nean it
won't but it has never happened since 1802, he said. Thi s
matter was introduced in last legislature, but it did not nove
t hrough the process, he reported.

4:45: 41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES related her understanding that the 7
percent requirenent was established in statute since it was what
was consi dered necessary to pay the PCE expenditures. She asked
for the target return to neet expenditures.

MR. BURNETT answered that the statute for the payout is 7

percent of the average of the prior three years. He said that
this is reported to the Alaska Energy Authority and they use
that figure as the maximum that it could request. He recalled

that the budget for the PCE is in $50 million range, which is
approxi mately between a 5-6 percent return.

4:47:03 PM

CHAIR OLSON, after first determning no one wi shed to testify,
cl osed public testinmny on HB 86.

4:47:22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES noved to report HB 86 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 25- February 20, 2015



not e. There being no objection, HB 86 was reported from the
House Labor and Commrerce Standing Comrttee.

4:47:56 PM
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
4:47 p. m

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 26- February 20, 2015



